MINUTES RECEIVED
TOWN OF BELMONT TOWN CLERK
LIGHT BOARD ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING BELMONT, MA
BELMONT LIGHT CONFERENCE ROOM
40 PRINCE STREET DATE: November 10, 2021
WEDNESDAY, June 16, 2021 7:30 A.M. TIME:  2:57 PM

l. CALL TO ORDER. Chair Travis Franck called a meeting of the Light Board Advisory Committee (LBAC)
to order at 7:31am.

Present were Chair Franck, Vice Chair Michael Macrae, Members Jonathan Abe, David Beavers, Robert
Forrester, and Ralph Jones. Absent was Member Steve Klionsky.

Present from the Light Board was Chair Adam Dash.

Present from Belmont Light were General Manager Craig Spinale, Assistant General Manager Sam
Osmancevic, Manager of Finance and Procurement Maria Makar-Limanov, Energy Resources Manager Becca
Keane, Energy Specialist Ben Thivierge, Communications Coordinator Aidan Leary, and Recording Secretary
Susan Peghiny.

.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
It was decided to move the approval of minutes to the next meeting.

lll.  REVIEW OF FIRST QUARTER FINANCIALS

Ms. Makar-Limanov provided a memo, income statement and PCA document for the first quarter. She
explained that usually first quarter numbers are not very representative of the entire year.

Revenues
e Total preliminary 1Q2021 revenue is $6,720,032 which is $549,568 (or 8.9%) higher than the budget and
$533,027 (or 8.6%) higher than 2020. This is broken down as follows:
o Revenues attributed to sales of electricity are $6,608,016, which is $359,099 (5.7%) higher
than the budget and $446,948 (7.3%) higher than 1Q2020;
o Other operating revenues are $22,826, or $11,279 (97.7%) higher than budgeted and $2,911
(11.3%) lower than similar period of the last year;
o Non-operating revenues are $89,190, an increase of $26,690 (42.7%) over budget and
increase of $88,990 from 1Q2020.

Expenses
e Total preliminary 1Q2021 expenses are $5,896,905 which is $173,334 (3%) higher than the budgeted
amount and $440,239 (8.1%) higher than 2020. Details are as follows:

o Power Production Expenses are $3,734,848, an increase of $188,114 (5.3%) of the budget
and increase of $366,306 (10.9%) from 1Q2020;

o Distribution expenses are $422,827, an increase of $29,934 (7.6%) of the budget and
increase of $12,111 (2.9%) compared to 1Q2020;

o Customer accounts expenses are estimated at $270,259, a decrease of $29,811 (9.9%) of the
budget and an increase of $40,237 (17.5%) of 1Q2020;

o General and Admin Expenses are $1,055,876, a decrease of $3,495 (0.3%) of the budget and
increase of $15,930 (1.5%) of 1Q2020;

o Maintenance expenses are $31,100, a decrease of $6,214 (16.7%) of the budget and
increase of $4,620 (1.2%) of 1Q2020.

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, June 16, 2021 Page 1



Financial results
o Estimated year-end operating income is expected within $2-3 million range, but the picture will be clearer
in 6-8 months.

During the Annual Results presentation there was a question about accounts receivable (A/R) balances. Ms.
Makar-Limanov said they are working on this. The trend is downward, and they will continue throughout the
year.

Mr. Dash pointed out that if the Governor's emergency orders are extended, the shutoff & collection
moratorium will be extended too. Mr. Spinale advised that currently they are trying to stop the growth of non-
payments. A/R balances have gone up over the past few years, and now they are looking deeply at who has
not paid in several years (some of which are not medically protected). Ms. Makar-Limanov added that this is an
industry-wide problem.

Sale of Electricity
Ms. Makar-Limanov said electric sales revenues for the reporting period were $6,608,016, which is $359,099
(5.7%) higher than the budget and $446,948 (7.3%) higher than 2020.

Mr. Forrester asked about residential usage being up 15% from the budget. Mr. Spinale said when they did the
budget there was still uncertainty about when businesses would open up and go back to something closer to
normal. He said the 2" quarter is more of a ‘normal’ budget. Mr. Forrester asked about the variance in the
spot pricing. Ms. Keane said it was very normal on a monthly basis.

PCA Tariff

Ms. Makar-Limanov reviewed the PCA language change, explaining that going through the budget cycle she
calculates the PCA rate. The January numbers are based on the old tariff language, from February forward it is
based on the new tariff language. The previous PCA reflected a $20,000 in over-collections. The new PCA rate
reflects first quarter and subsequent 9 months calculated reflects a possible $140,000 in over collections.
Depending on how purchase power costs and sales go, Belmont Light could either credit the customers or
reserve it by moving it to our Rate Stabilization Fund.

Mr. Franck asked for a overview of the PCA. Ms. Makar-Limanov reviewed the difference between the old tariff
(with a set number which created a big over-collection) and the new one (where they use a calculation, which
should be more accurate):
e Starting December 1, 2019 the PCA tariff with a fixed base cost of power supply of $0.1144 per kWh was
used.
¢ On February 1, 2021 a new Power Cost Adjustment Clause tariff was approved and implemented. The
new tariff establishes base cost of power during annual budget cycle to be applied through the calendar
year.
o The PCA factor is applied as required, in order to equate actual power supply costs with revenues
collected through the base rate while maintaining a reserve balance to cover short term power supply
cost fluctuations.

IV. TIME OF USE PUBLIC FORUM SCHEDULE

Mr. Spinale updated the Committee on the Time of Use (TOU) forum schedule. Belmont Light is still gathering
information to present to the public, including resources that customers can use. The first public forum will
have to be after July 4, with others following in the fall.

Mr. Spinale asked what involvement LBAC would like to have in the forums, especially related to live vs.
remote vs. hybrid. Mr. Macrae asked if Mr. Spinale felt he needed LBAC at the forums. Mr. Spinale said
LBAC doesn’t need to be part of it, but he didn’t want to discourage the members from participating.

Mr. Franck felt there should be some LBAC presence there. Mr. Dash asked if the MLB should run the forums,
but that someone from LBAC should be there. There was discussion about how the forums might be
structured.

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, June 16, 2021 Page 2



Mr. Franck asked if the TOU pilot was still on track, and Mr. Spinale confirmed that it is. He expects early
October but wants to get community input to help design it.

V. DISCUSSION ON CHENERY SOLAR PROJECT

Mr. Osmancevic reported that SunBug Solar had tested several different mounting methods, and Belmont Light
received notification that they could use a method that would not penetrate the roof. The roof is still leaking but
will be repaired before installation.

After speaking to the Office of Community Development, Belmont Light has received confirmation that a formal
Planning Board review is not necessary.

Mr. Osmancevic is still in contact with ENE regarding the grant because this project exceeds 25 kWh which is
larger than the grant limit. He got the School Committee to sign a letter confirming they would maintain the
panels. He expects a final answer about the grant within days.

Mr. Osmancevic said there has been vandalism with kids getting up on that roof. Figuring out how to address
this is ongoing. The School Committee or Facilities may have to resolve this.

The Committee thanked Mr. Osmancevic for continuing to pursue this project and also spoke about community
support for the project.

Mr. Osmancevic updated the Committee on the problems with repairing the leaks to the roof.

VI. DISCUSSION ON BATTERY STORAGE

Mr. Franck wondered if there were other opportunities for battery storage in town since the incinerator site
seems to be posing too many obstacles.

Mr. Spinale said Belmont Light had worked with several vendors who made a variety of proposals. One
vendor researched other sites but could not find much. Mr. Spinale pointed out that the lot adjacent to Belmont
Light might be possible since it is mostly empty. The Water Department owns that property, so it is a Town
issue. This is the only alternative site they’ve come up with, although the smaller sub-stations have potential
once they are empty. The group discussed the issues surrounding using the lot and the substations.

Mr. Forrester asked if there are residents who have other ideas on using the substations. Mr. Dash said yes,
but ultimately Belmont Light owns the buildings although he would like a collaborative process.

Ms. Keane said they are in talks about distributed generation setups that would be similar to a Green Mountain
Power plan where the customer owns it but Belmont Light has control.

Mr. Macrae said other utilities have these types of programs and the EEAC is going through a review process
and finding net positive results for the utility and customers. The program has advantages because it
encourages people to behave in a way that benefits the entire system. He feels it's worth Belmont Light to
pursue this aggressively.

Mr. Abe said the Infrastructure Bill may provide incentive for home solar.

Ms. Keane reported that there hadn’t been any new information on grants. Mr. Thivierge said there has been
discussion about results, lessons learned, etc., but there was nothing about when funding will return.

VII.  HIGH SCHOOL SOLAR INTERCONNECTION

Mr. Beavers pointed out that having storage at the High School would be beneficial during emergencies. Mr.
Spinale said he spoke to Bill Lovallo and they are still committed to installing solar at the school, although they
had not discussed battery storage. The site is tight, but he will bring it up to them. He said the substations
could be repurposed as well.

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, June 16, 2021 Page 3



Mr. Franck asked if there was a storage ready aspect at the high school. Resident Phil Thayer said this had
been discussed and there is a space set aside for battery in the power area. Mr. Spinale will talk with Mr.
Lovallo about this.

Ms. Keane said there is federal legislation would allow MLPs to take tax credits for energy projects, which
would be very beneficial for energy storage prospects. She said that APPA is on top of this legislation and is
updating its members.

VIIl. DISCUSSION ON NATIONAL GRID GEOTHERMAL DISTRICT PROGRAM

Mr. Beavers said 4 pilot projects are being pursued as a pilot program (with 45 homes each). He said
customers of MLPs were previously precluded but are allowed now. He suggested that Belmont Light reach
out to National Grid to discuss the possibility of Belmont participating.

He said environmental justice advocates are pushing for low-income areas, others are pushing for commercial
to balance load as well. The Group discussed possible sites in town, and Mr. Beavers will pursue the issue
with National Grid. Mr. Abe asked if you have to be a gas customer of National Grid to participate. Mr.
Beavers thinks not. Mr. Macrae asked what technology is being talked about. Mr. Beavers said he doesn't
know exactly but there would be a main line that people tap into.

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S UPDATE

A. Ventana Update: An email was sent to all committee members and MLB that there will be a webinar on
June 24™. Send Ben Thivierge an email to be registered.

B. Town Meeting Update: the article for the DPW yard fuel tank replacement was reconsidered but failed so
right now it is dead. Mr. Spinale explained that Belmont Light’s involvement was related to the cost
associated to the project. He will pursue to see if there is still a benefit for Belmont Light to be involved if
the project is reorganized.

Mr. Dash said the Select Board plans to do more public forums and bring it back in the fall, perhaps
changing the tank size or other aspects. If this is put off until the fall nothing will happen until the spring.
There are currently below ground tanks and the plan is to replace them with fiberglass above ground tanks.

Mr. Franck said he heard at Town Meeting that Belmont Light uses 12% of the fuel usage but carries 20%
of the cost. Mr. Spinale said that is why they will reevaluate the project. He said Belmont Light has a few
hybrid model vehicles in its fleet right now, but they are mostly for operational use. He said his main
concern is being able to fuel Belmont Light’s bucket trucks. While there are some electric bucket trucks on
the market now, they are not fully functional for what Belmont Light needs. As a result, access to diesel
fuel remains a concern for Mr. Spinale.

There was a discussion of the available electric vehicles that could be used by Belmont Light. Mr. Spinale
feels it's better to wait to see where the technology is going, and he hopes to see new offerings soon.

C. EV Charger Deployment: This will be brought to the MLB on Monday. Belmont Light has looked at rates
that could be used to provide these chargers throughout town. The High School would like to install EV
chargers at existing and new buildings.

Belmont Light is looking at potential spots (schools, public lots, etc.) and considering enforcement for when
someone stays in the spot after charging is complete.

Mr. Spinale reviewed some of the expenses of adding the Level 2 chargers.

Mr. Franck said he’s concerned about renters and asked if this had been part of the discussion, especially
type of charge, fees, and access. Mr. Spinale said they are looking at what overnight fees will be,
depending on location as well as enforcement. There was a discussion about location choices.

Mr. Macrae asked if there was a reason why this is priced by the hour rather that by kwh. Ms. Keane said
one issue is the overstay charge, which is difficult to represent in kWh, and they don’t want to file an actual
rate because of the variable cost. Using a dollar per hour rate gives Belmont Light flexibility.

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, June 16, 2021 Page 4



Mr. Spinale said one hurdle is the parking fees collected by the town. Mr. Dash said the Parking Clerk felt
like it would have a minimal impact.

D. June 8 & 14, 2021 Outages: Mr. Spinale said on June 8, 2021, Eversource had several lightning strikes on
their transmission system, which Belmont Light is attached to. The voltage dropped, so the Belmont Light
protective devices saw this drop as an issue, which caused an outage for customers. There was no
damage to the system and took about 49 minutes to resolve.

Mr. Spinale said on June 14, 2021, a squirrel got onto the lines on Cross Street and took out the Toby
Road area. This was about 42 minutes to repair.

Mr. Abe left the meeting at 9:00am.

X.  MEMBERSHIP UPDATE

Mr. Franck said Mr. Klionsky and Mr. Jones were up for reappointment at the end of June. Mr. Klionsky was
seeking reappoint, but Mr. Jones is not seeking reappointment, so a new member will be appointed by the
MLB. Mr. Dash said this appointment is on the agenda for discussion and possible vote. He invited LBAC
members to give input on applicants.

Mr. Jones said he had enjoyed being on the Committee but feels it’s time to go.

Mr. Franck, the Committee, and Mr. Spinale thanked Mr. Jones for his service. Mr. Jones will be recognized
publicly at the Monday night MLB meeting.

Xl.  FUTURE MEETINGS & LOGISTICS GOING FORWARD

e July 14, 2021
e August 11, 2021 tentatively scheduled

Mr. Franck said generally the Committee does not meet once in the summer, either July or August and asked if
the members have a preference. After some discussion it was decided to tentatively skip August.

Mr. Forrester asked about the status of the survey. Mr. Leary said the phone survey is done and the email
survey ended Friday, but they don’t have any data yet. Mr. Forrester said he had been called by the survey
vendor and felt the questions were appropriate although he wondered if the average customer would have the
knowledge to answer some of the questions. Mr. Leary said there would be a presentation about the results in
the fall. Mr. Dash asked if they wanted to do it jointly with the MLB.

Xll. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Macrae moved to adjourn the meeting, Mr. Beaver’s seconded and the motion passed
unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 am.

Respectfully submitted by,
Susan Peghiny

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, June 16, 2021 Page 5



